
 
 
 

September 13, 2022 

 

Dear Offerors: 

 

ADDENDUM NUMBER 001 

SOLICITATION NUMBER: 359537 

Hanford Mission Integration Solutions, LLC. (HMIS) hereby amends Solicitation No 359537- Conduct 
of Operations Assessment and Surveillance Support. 

Solicitation: 

1. Revises Proposal due date from 9/15/2022 to 9/22/2022. 

Questions and Answers 

Information regarding the submission of a proposal is contained in the Solicitation at Hanford 
Mission Integrated Solutions. 

 

1. General: Please confirm the RFP number is 359537 vs. 3595371.  
a. The correct number for this RFP is 359537. 

2. 2.0 Basis for Award: How many contract awards is HMIS anticipating? 
a. The basis of this subcontract will be one with work order. This is an indefinite delivery, 

indefinite quantity subcontract. The exact number of task orders are unknown, but each 
task can be expected to be done quarterly. 

3. Section 3.2.1: Does HMIS have a limitation on the number of Key Personnel resumes that can be 
submitted? 

a. There is no limitation on the number of resumes that can be submitted to HMIS. 
4. Exhibits: In which proposal volume does HMIS want to see the exhibits listed on page 12? Are 

any of these exhibits required after contract award? 
a. Exhibits will only be required at the awarded subcontract, not at the issued work orders. 

5. Section E.2: How does the period of performance 10/03/2022 through 09/30/2023 align with the 
hours identified in Attachment 5? 

a. Hours in Attachment 5 were only provided by HMIS as an estimate. Offerors are to 
propose the number of hours they require to perform each task along with a dollar 
amount per task. The frequency of each task will be on an as-need basis under the IDIQ 
contract type using work orders. 

6. Section E.2: Are there anticipated specific start and stop dates for Tasks 1–4 in Attachment 5? 
a. As work orders are issued, there will be a period of performance (POP) specified and 

agreed upon for each individual work order between HMIS and the subcontractor. Please 
note, one work order may contain multiple tasks and the POP will reflect that. 

7. Are the hours listed in attachment 5 for pricing evaluation purposes only or are they the hours 
HMIS anticipates it will take to complete the assessment from start to finish? 
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a. Attachment 5 contains only estimated hours HMIS believes each task will take as a base 
for solicitors. Offerors are to propose hours with rates to be evaluated by HMIS for each 
individual task. 

8. SOW In General: Does HMIS expect the offeror to stand-up a traditional team to include Team 
Leader and Assessors to perform the scope of work in its entirety? 

a. The amount of personnel used to perform each work order is decided by the 
subcontractor and their approach on how to manage the scope of work within the period 
of performance per work order.  Note, this is a firm fixed price subcontract.  Each work 
order will be issued as a firm fixed price per task.  

9. SOW In General: Will HMIS provide the Assessment Plan or will the offeror be required to 
develop the Assessment Plan? 

a. HMIS will develop the assessment plan with necessary items to satisfy the scope of work. 
However, HMIS will accept recommendations based on previous work. 

10. SOW In General: Does HMIS have report templates that are required to be used as part of its 
Quality Assurance Program? 

a. Yes, there is a template to be filled out within the Hanford iCAS system to complete with 
assessments/findings from each task ordered. 

11. SOW In General: Have any assessments/surveillances been performed for these groups in the 
past? If yes, will we have access to the report and/or findings and fixes? 

a. Yes, there has been previous assessments/ surveillances and the subcontractor will have 
access to past reports/ findings as necessary. 

12. SOW In General: How many Assessors/FTEs does HMIS anticipate it will take to complete the 
SOW? 

a. This is decided by the individual subcontractor and will need to be proposed accordingly. 
13. Section 1.2: What support will HMIS provide specifically to the subcontractor? 

a. Oversight of the subcontract, access to HMIS’ CONOPS mentors, assist with scheduling. 
Work is to be mostly completed by the subcontractor with minimal assistance from 
HMIS unless required. 

14. Section 1.2: What version of DOE-O-422.1 Conduct of Operations is listed in the contract 
between HMIS and DOE? 

a. Most current version available on the DOE website (Version/ Chg 4). 
15. Section 1.3: Based on the nature of this surveillance, the approved Conduct of Operations 

Program Document and Applicability Matrix in accordance with DOE O 422.1 will be required, 
when will these documents be provided? 

a. Yes, the documents will be provided with the award subcontract and when a task is 
required to be completed. With some items not being cleared for public release, therefore 
they are not provided with the solicitation. 

16. Section 1.3 (Task 4): Hanford Patrol surveillance lists Requirement 2.n. Required Reading and 
Requirement 2.p. Technical Procedures twice. Please clarify. 

a. This was an accidental duplication by the technical writer. Each requirement (2.n., and 
2.p.) will only be required to be provided once per work order release.  SOW revision 
will be issued to remove duplication.  

17. Section 3.1: Based on the primary work location being offsite; what specific surveillance 
activities (i.e., interviews, document/evidence reviews, meetings, etc.,) are anticipated to require 
field presence?  



 
 

a. For each assessment/ task there will be some level of onsite activity. The amount will 
vary depending on the task required. After the assessment/ surveillance, the remainder of 
work can be completed off site. 

18. Section 4.2 Prior to the start of work the Subcontractor shall work with the HMIS BTR to 
complete an JHA. Will these hours be accounted for in Attachment 5? 

a. This is a firm fixed price subcontract, so all hours should be considered and input into the 
proposals. 

19. Section 4.3: Please provide site-specific and/or project-specific Quality Assurance Program and 
applicable procedures that define referenced quality levels. 

a. The subcontract and work orders will be a Quality level of 0 for all assessments, meaning 
Quality Assurance Program will remain the same for all tasks. Also, the applicable HMIS 
procedures are not released to the public and will be provided to the awarded 
subcontractor. 

20. Section 8.1: Based on required training listed, please confirm RADWORKER or NCS training is 
not required. 

a. HMIS training requirements are specified in section 8.1 within the Statement of Work, so 
trainings listed above are not required. Any additional training may be viewed as best 
value criteria for award. 

21. Section 8.1: Are any hours going to be designated for the training of assessors?  Will these be 
accounted for in Attachment 5? 

a. This is a firm fixed price subcontract so all hours in proposal must include training hours, 
meetings, etc. HMIS requests proposals for each task contain ALL hours required to 
successfully complete the assessment as defined in the scope of work. 

22. Section 10.1: Will the hours to perform the Kickoff Meeting and the Progress Meetings be 
accounted for in Attachment 5? 

a.  This is a firm fixed price subcontract so all hours in proposal must include training 
hours, meetings, etc. HMIS requests proposals for each task contain ALL hours required 
to successfully complete the assessment as defined in the scope of work. 

23. Will the Tasks be run concurrently? There are subtasks with the exact same requirements under 
different tasks, will they be run at different times?  

a. These tasks will be performed on an as need basis for HMIS using a work order. One 
work order may contain more than one task/subtask and be required to be done 
concurrently.  

24. Will the assessments / surveillances be completed all at once or at separate times throughout the 
year.  For example, Task 1 is a total of 50 hours, will that be completed in 5 consecutive days 
(5x10 hr days), or are the hours going to be broken out throughout the year? 

a. Task 1 is estimated by HMIS to take around 50 hours, once HMIS releases a work order 
for a task, there will be a reasonable time frame agreed upon between HMIS and 
subcontractor. One work order may contain multiple tasks to run parallel with one 
another. 

25. What is the expected timeline between when a task order is released and when the work is 
required to begin? 

a. This will be specified within the period of performance within each work order release. 
Please note that multiple tasks can be asked for in each work order. Work is expected to 
begin immediately after a work order is released and signed by both parties and having 
required on site visits scheduled. 



 
 

26. Per, Attachment_5_Hour_Per_Task_Estimates.pdf, the hours are identified for each task 1-4, 
however the frequency is unclear. Can you please clarify how often the tasks are to be performed, 
once a year, once a quarter, once a month? 

a. These tasks can be expected to be completed, at a minimum, quarterly. However, this is 
an indefinite delivery, indefinite quantity subcontract so frequency may more/less based 
on HMIS’ need. 

Draft Subcontract: 

1. Modifies Attachment 1, Statement of Work to incorporate Revision 1, dated September 13, 2022.  

Information regarding the submission of a proposal is contained in the attached Solicitation.   

Proposals are to be prepared in accordance with the instructions and conditions set forth herein.  Proposals 
are to be received by 4:00 P.M. on 09/22/2022. 

All questions are to be directed to the Contract Specialist.  All proposals are subject to the terms and 
conditions set forth herein.  Any exceptions, deviations, or omissions may be grounds for rejection of 
proposals submitted. 

 

HMIS looks forward to your response. 

Thank you, 

 

 

Contract Specialist 
Calvin Callahan 
(509) 376-2075 
Calvin_d_callahan@rl.gov  

 


